

Bylaws of Camp Cleanup est.2025

Article I – Name and Purpose

1. Name

The name of this nonprofit organization is Camp Cleanup.

2. Purpose

Camp Cleanup is dedicated to leaving camp cleaner than when we arrived, to educating the community about the responsible use of camping facilities and the earth's resources, and to sharing best practices to ensure our Public Lands, National, State, and Private campgrounds are preserved for future generations.

Article II – Membership

1. Eligibility

Membership is open to any individual who supports the mission of the organization and is willing to participate in its activities, including educational and campsite clean-up events.

2. Rights and Responsibilities of Members

- a. Members have the right to participate in all organizational activities.
- b. Members must adhere to the organization's code of conduct and support its mission.
- c. Members are encouraged to attend meetings, volunteer for events, and support fundraising efforts.

3. Termination of Membership

Membership may be terminated if a member fails to comply with the organization's bylaws or engages in behavior contrary to its mission. Termination requires a majority vote of the Board of Directors.

Article III – Board of Directors

1. Authority and Responsibility

The Board of Directors shall govern the organization, set policies, and oversee its activities, including campsite clean-up, educating the community, fundraising, and other initiatives.

2. Composition

The Board of Directors shall consist of three individuals, elected by the membership. These positions include:

- President/CEO
- Secretary
- Treasurer/CFO

3. Election and Term

- a. Board members shall be elected by a majority vote of the membership during the annual meeting.
- b. Each director shall serve a term of 3 years and may be re-elected.
- c. Vacancies on the Board may be filled by a majority vote of the remaining Board members.

4. Meetings

- a. The Board of Directors shall meet at least quarterly.
- b. Special meetings may be called by the President or upon request of any member of the Board.
- c. A quorum for Board meetings shall consist of a majority of the current Board members.

Article IV – Officers

1. President/CEO

The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors, represent the organization publicly, and oversee the general operation of the nonprofit.

3. Secretary

The Secretary shall keep accurate records of all meetings and correspondence and maintain membership lists.

4. Treasurer/CFO

The Treasurer shall be responsible for managing the organization's finances, including accounting, budgeting, and reporting on financial status to the Board.

Article V – Committees

1. Standing Committees

The organization may establish committees as needed to carry out specific tasks related to campsite clean-ups, education, or fundraising efforts. Example committees could include:

- Cleanup Planning Committee
- Fundraising Committee
- Community Outreach Committee

2. Ad-Hoc Committees

The Board may also create temporary ad-hoc committees for specific projects or tasks.

Article VI – Fiscal Policies

1. Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of the organization shall begin on July 1 and end on June 30.

2. Financial Oversight

The Treasurer shall present an annual budget to the Board for approval. Financial records shall be open for inspection by any member upon request.

3. Dissolution

Upon the dissolution of the organization, any remaining assets shall be distributed to another nonprofit organization with a similar purpose, as determined by the Board of Directors.

Article VII – Meetings

1. Annual General Meeting

The organization shall hold an Annual General Meeting (AGM) for members to discuss the activities of the year, elect Board members, and review the financials.

2. Special Meetings

Special meetings may be called at the request of the Board or a specified number of members.

3. Quorum

A quorum for any meeting shall consist of no less than 51% of the membership or Board members, as required.

Article VIII – Amendments

1. Amendment Procedure

These Bylaws may be amended at any regular or special meeting by a two-thirds/majority vote of the membership, provided that written notice of the proposed amendments has been given seven days prior to the meeting.

Article IX – Code of Conduct

1. General Expectations

All members, directors, and volunteers are expected to act respectfully, responsibly, and in accordance with the organization's values and mission. This includes being courteous to other members and the public during campsite clean-up activities.

2. Disciplinary Action

Violations of the Code of Conduct may result in disciplinary actions, including removal from specific activities or membership, as determined by the Board of Directors.

Article X – Conflict of Interest

1. Disclosure

Any member of the Board of Directors or officer of the organization who has a financial or personal interest in a matter being discussed shall disclose the interest and recuse themselves from any related decision-making.